

1 Section 1. Section 2-2 of the Broward County Code of Ordinances is hereby
2 amended to read as follows, and the remaining definitions shall be relettered
3 accordingly:

4 **Sec. 2-2. Definitions.**

5 ...

6 (e) *Airport Issued Identification Media* shall mean the picture security
7 identification badge issued by the Aviation Department ~~that~~ pursuant to Section 2-43(a)
8 of the Code, which is magnetically encoded to permit controlled access through the
9 Airport's computerized access system and serves as the officially recognized security
10 identification ~~at FLL~~ for access to the Restricted Area as required by federal regulations.

11 ...

12 (cc) *Public Area Business Purpose Media* shall mean the picture identification
13 badge issued by the Aviation Department pursuant to Section 2-43(b) of the Code.

14 ~~(ee)~~ (dd) *Ramp Control* shall mean the entity responsible for controlling the surface
15 movement of Aircraft on those portions of the Airport designated by the Aviation
16 Department.

17 ~~(dd)~~ (ee) *Restricted Area* shall mean any area of the Airport that prohibits entry or
18 limits entry or access to specific authorized persons or vehicles.

19 ...

20
21 Section 2. Section 2-20 of the Broward County Code of Ordinances is hereby
22 amended to read as follows:

23 **Sec. 2-20. Airport operations area.**

24 ...

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 (d) *Smoking prohibited on the AOA.* Smoking any tobacco product or any
2 electronic or other artificial smoking device is prohibited on the AOA, including all ramps
3 and apron areas. Smoking shall be allowed in those areas specifically designated for
4 smoking by the Aviation Director.

5 (e) Foreign Objects and Debris (FOD). Persons must not leave any FOD in
6 the AOA, including on any ground support vehicle or equipment in the AOA. FOD
7 includes, but is not limited to, water bottles, broken luggage parts, gloves, cans, paper,
8 plastic bags, and other items that do not belong near airplanes in the AOA.

9 (f) Baggage carts. Persons must not bring any baggage carts to the AOA.

10 (g) Wheelchairs. Persons must not bring any wheelchairs to the AOA unless
11 such wheelchairs are being actively used for passenger transportation. Upon
12 completion of the passenger transportation, the wheelchairs must be immediately
13 removed from the AOA.

14
15 Section 3. Section 2-39 of the Broward County Code of Ordinances is hereby
16 amended to read as follows:

17 **Sec. 2-39. Airport security and animal control at Fort Lauderdale-**
18 **Hollywood International Airport.**

19 (a) *Airport Operations* Restricted Area. It shall be the responsibility of any all
20 tenants, permittees, contractors, ~~or and~~ other persons ~~having control of any vehicles,~~
21 ~~gates, doors, or any other means of ingress to or egress from any access control portal~~
22 ~~to keep the same secured or controlled at all times~~ having an Airport Issued
23 Identification Media to prevent the access entry of unauthorized persons into Restricted
24 Areas.

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 (1) No person, other than the following, shall enter ~~the AOA or a restricted~~
2 ~~area of the Airport, except~~ a Restricted Area, unless otherwise authorized
3 by the Airport Security Program:

4 a. ~~In accordance with security clearance pursuant to the established~~
5 ~~Airport Security Program; or~~

6 b. a. Those persons performing assigned duties ~~on the AOA or other~~
7 ~~restricted areas~~ in a Restricted Area and ~~bearing~~ displaying a
8 proper Airport Issued Identification Media; ~~or~~

9 ~~e.~~ b. Employees or authorized representatives of the Aviation
10 Department or other federal, state, or local governmental agencies
11 ~~bearing~~ displaying a proper Airport Issued Identification Media; ~~or~~

12 ~~d.~~ c. Passengers under appropriate supervision of air carrier or Aviation
13 Department personnel entering the aircraft apron for the purpose of
14 enplaning or deplaning an aircraft; and

15 d. Persons being escorted in accordance with the requirements of this
16 section.

17 (2) ~~No person shall in any way tamper or interfere with security alarms, locks,~~
18 ~~or closing mechanisms of any door or gate on the Airport leading to the~~
19 ~~AOA or a restricted area; nor shall any person otherwise breach any~~
20 ~~security directive at the Airport.~~ No person shall in any way interfere with
21 any security protocols designed to secure or control access to a
22 Restricted Area. This prohibition includes, but is not limited to:

23 a. Tampering or interfering with, compromising, modifying, or
24 attempting to circumvent any security lock, mechanism, or device;

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 security alarm system; closing mechanism of a door, gate, or
2 other type of access portal; or security system, measure, or
3 procedure.

4 b. Interfering with, preventing, or otherwise obstructing an authorized
5 law enforcement officer, a designated Aviation Department
6 employee, or a representative appointed by the Aviation
7 Department from performing his or her duties in accordance with
8 the provisions of the Airport Security Program or other federal,
9 state, and local regulations.

10 (3) ~~No~~ All persons having an Airport Issued Identification Media ~~shall fail to~~
11 are required to investigate the cause of an access control alarm,
12 clear/reset the alarm once the investigation is completed, and contact the
13 ~~Broward County~~ Aviation Department once the alarm is cleared/reset.

14 (4) Each ~~company~~ entity and airline operating at the Airport that sponsors
15 individuals with Airport Issued Identification Media shall ensure that every
16 ~~employee is~~ all such individuals sponsored by the entity or airline are fully
17 trained and knowledgeable in the ~~maintenance of the security of the AOA~~
18 ~~and to keep same secured or controlled at all times to prevent the access~~
19 ~~of unauthorized persons~~ the regulations provided in this section. In the
20 ~~event of the issuance of two (2) or more security access control violations~~
21 ~~by an employee or employees of such company or airline, the Aviation~~
22 ~~Department will impose a penalty on such company or airline established~~
23 ~~by resolution of the Board.~~ The Aviation Department shall impose a fine in
24 the amount established by resolution of the Board on the applicable entity

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 or airline each time that a sponsored individual is issued a security access
2 control violation, except that no fine shall be imposed on such entity or
3 airline if no other sponsored individual of that entity or airline has been
4 issued a security access control violation over the immediately preceding
5 five (5) year period.

6 (5) All persons having an Airport Issued Identification Media holders ~~must~~
7 shall challenge any person ~~detected in the AOA~~ a Restricted Area who is
8 not properly displaying appropriate identification media by asking to see
9 such person's identification media, and shall immediately report such
10 violation in compliance with the Airport Security Program.

11 (6) ~~Each person with~~ All persons having an Airport Issued Identification Media
12 shall comply with the requirements for escorted access ~~on the AOA. in the~~
13 Restricted Areas. ~~Escort requirements include: receive and maintain an~~
14 Escort Authority ("E") on his/her FLL badge; accompany the visitor(s) at all
15 times; escort only as many visitors as may be properly controlled; be able
16 to see the visitor(s) at all times; make sure the visitor(s) can hear any
17 instructions given to them; and allow the visitor to go only where the escort
18 is allowed access. Such requirements include, but are not limited to, the
19 requirements delineated in the Escort Authority and Visitor Badge
20 Program, as amended, which shall be signed by the person escorting an
21 individual ("Escort"), and the following:

22 1. Escorts must display their Airport Issued Identification Media at all
23 times;

24
Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 2. Only those with an Escort Authority indication ("E") on their Airport
2 Issued Identification Media may escort others;

3 3. An Escort must accompany the escorted visitors at all times;

4 4. An Escort may only escort as many escorted visitors as he or she
5 can properly oversee;

6 5. The Escort must be able to visually see the escorted visitors at all
7 times;

8 6. The Escort must ensure that all escorted visitors can hear him or
9 her at all times; and

10 7. The Escort must ensure that all escorted visitors access only areas
11 that the Escort is allowed to access.

12 ~~(7) Individuals who have current and valid unescorted access authority but~~
13 ~~are not in possession of their Airport Issued Identification Media are not~~
14 ~~eligible to be escorted.~~

15 ~~(8)~~ (7) Each person that has All persons having Airport Issued Identification
16 Media shall follow the push/pull procedures for ingress to or egress from
17 any access control portal, and shall ensure that an access portal is closed
18 and fully secured prior to ~~an individual~~ departing that access portal.

19 ~~(9)~~ (8) ~~A person that has~~ All persons having Airport Issued Identification Media
20 must properly access a vehicular gate, as such proper access is described
21 in the Airport Security Program, while entering or exiting ~~the AOA pursuant~~
22 ~~to the Airport Security Program~~ a Restricted Area, unless otherwise
23 authorized by the Aviation Department ~~for a particular instance.~~

24
Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
 underscored type are additions.

1 (10) (9) Unless under the supervision of an Aviation Department approved escort,
2 it shall be the responsibility of each person ~~on in, or entering, or exiting the~~
3 AOA a Restricted Area to ensure ~~that such person~~ continuously displays,
4 at all times, on his/her outermost garment, above waist level on the front
5 portion of the torso, Airport Issued Identification Media in accordance with
6 the Airport Security Program.

7 (10) Airport tenants, lessees, permittees, and all others assigned space at the
8 Airport shall control access into Restricted Areas from within their
9 assigned space, and maintain a lock and key program or other security
10 system pursuant to the Airport Security Program or Federal Security
11 Directive(s).

12 (11) No person shall violate the Airport Security Program, Federal Security
13 Directive(s), federal, state, and/or local regulations, or any regulations
14 provided in this section.

15 (12) No person shall use his or her access privileges to enable (intentionally
16 or unintentionally) another person, with or without Airport Issued
17 Identification Media, to gain access to a Restricted Area (i.e.,
18 piggybacking), except as authorized in the Airport Security Program.

19 (b) *Airport Issued Identification Media and Public Area Business Purpose*
20 *Media.*

21 (1) The sponsors of persons with Airport Issued Identification Media, ~~including~~
22 ~~but not limited to, direct employees, tenants, permittees, or contractors, or~~
23 Public Area Business Purpose Media shall immediately notify the Aviation
24 Department by telephone, ~~with written notification provided to the Aviation~~

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 Department ~~within eight (8) hours~~ of any change in the status of any
2 persons with Airport Issued Identification Media ~~status with respect to any~~
3 ~~person~~ or Public Area Business Purpose Media that they sponsor,
4 including, but not limited to, when the Airport Issued Identification Media or
5 Public Area Business Purpose Media expire or are otherwise lost or
6 stolen, or when the persons to whom such Airport Issued Identification
7 Media or Public Area Business Purpose Media belong are terminated or
8 leave the sponsors' employment. Within eight (8) hours of any such
9 change in status, such sponsors shall follow up the telephone notice with
10 written notice to the Aviation Department. Written notice shall be in a form
11 approved by the Aviation Department.

12 (2) The sponsors of persons with Airport Issued Identification Media or Public
13 Area Business Purpose Media shall return the Airport Issued Identification
14 Media or Public Area Business Purpose Media to the Aviation Department
15 within twenty-four (24) hours ~~of the~~ after any change in status change, as
16 described in subsection (b)(1) above, and within twenty-four (24) hours
17 after the Airport Issued Identification Media or Public Area Business
18 Purpose Media become inactive as a result of an audit. Any failure of the
19 Sponsor to return the Airport Issued Identification Media as required
20 herein shall be subject to the imposition of a fine, as established by
21 resolution of the Board.

22 (3) No person shall make, possess, use, offer for sale, sell, barter, exchange,
23 pass, or deliver any forged, counterfeit, or altered Airport ~~issued~~
24 Identification Media or Public Area Business Purpose Media.

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 (4) All persons seeking Airport Issued Identification Media or Public Area
2 Business Purpose Media shall ~~make~~ complete and submit an application
3 to the Aviation Department pursuant to federal regulations relating to
4 security and the Airport Security Program.

5 1. ~~It shall be a violation of this ordinance to~~ No person shall provide
6 false or misleading information in order to obtain Airport Issued
7 Identification Media or Public Area Business Purpose Media.

8 2. ~~It shall be a violation of this ordinance to~~ No person shall cheat on
9 any examination in order to obtain Airport Issued Identification
10 Media, ~~including, but not limited to, the use of electronic devices in~~
11 ~~the computer training center and credentialing office~~ or Public Area
12 Business Purpose Media. As used in this section, ~~the term "to~~
13 ~~cheat"~~ means when a person acts dishonestly or unfairly in order to
14 gain an advantage for ~~such person~~ himself or herself or to gain an
15 advantage for another person, or uses a prohibited electronic
16 device in the computer training center and credentialing office.

17 3. Persons who violate Section 2-39(b)(4), in addition to any other
18 penalties provided by law, including fines under Chapter 8½ of the
19 Code, shall have their applications denied and be ineligible to
20 reapply for an Airport Issued Identification Media or Public Area
21 Business Purpose Media for thirty (30) calendar days from the date
22 of such violation.

23 (5) Airport Issued Identification Media and Public Area Business Purpose
24 Media issued by the Aviation Department shall at all times remain the

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscoring type are additions.

1 property of the County. As such, the Aviation Department shall have the
2 right to confiscate or demand the return of the Airport Issued Identification
3 Media or Public Area Business Purpose Media of any person who violates
4 the provisions of this ordinance, or the Airport's federally approved Airport
5 Security Program; or whose lease, license, agreement, or permit with the
6 County allowing use of the Airport has expired, ~~or~~ is canceled, or is
7 terminated. ~~The Department shall have the right to confiscate or demand~~
8 ~~the return of a Department issued Airport Issued Identification Media for~~
9 ~~any violation by any individual of the Airport Security Program or any~~
10 ~~federal regulations relating to security.~~

11 (c) *Consent to Search and/or Inspection of Motor Vehicle.* Any motor vehicle
12 and the contents thereof when ~~on~~ in, entering, or exiting the ~~AOA, or other restricted~~
13 ~~Airport area,~~ a Restricted Area shall be subject to search and/or inspection by an
14 authorized law enforcement officer or designated Aviation Department employee for the
15 purpose of determining ownership of such vehicle and the contents thereof, and for
16 examining the documentation relating thereto. The operation or use of such motor
17 vehicle by any person when ~~on~~ in, entering, or exiting the ~~AOA, or other restricted~~
18 ~~Airport area,~~ a Restricted Area shall constitute the consent of the owner, operator,
19 and/or user of such vehicle to the aforesaid search and/or inspection. Inspections
20 relating to United States Customs bonded cargo and customs seals shall be subject to
21 the rules and regulations of the United States Customs Service.

22 (d) *Consent to Searches and/or Inspections of Persons and Property.* ~~No~~
23 ~~person shall enter the AOA, or other restricted Airport area, except: (1) persons who~~
24 ~~have current, valid Airport Issued Identification Media, or (2) persons with a Department~~

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 approved escort, or (3) persons issued a temporary permit pursuant to Section 2-25(a),
2 Broward County Code of Ordinances, or (4) employees of federal, state, or local
3 governmental bodies then having official business thereon and bearing proper
4 identification. No person on the AOA, or entering or attempting to enter, exiting or
5 attempting to exit the AOA, or other restricted Airport area, shall refuse to All persons,
6 when in, entering, or exiting a Restricted Area, shall produce their Airport Issued
7 Identification Media and the contents of any vehicle, bag, case, parcel, box, container,
8 or other item of any kind in their possession for search and/or inspection at the request
9 of an authorized law enforcement officer or designated Aviation Department employee,
10 ~~Airport Issued Identification Media and the contents of any vehicle, bag, case, parcel,~~
11 ~~box, or container of any kind in his/her possession.~~ Where the entry into or departure
12 from the AOA or attempt thereof a Restricted Area is by means of a motor vehicle, ~~no~~
13 ~~person~~ the driver and all passengers shall refuse to produce for inspection, ~~upon~~
14 ~~request of an authorized law enforcement officer or designated Department employee, a~~
15 driver's license, Airport Issued Identification Media, or both, and any documents in their
16 possession relating to the ownership or possession of any cargo or freight, upon
17 request of an authorized law enforcement officer or designated Aviation Department
18 employee. No person shall refuse to produce at the request of an authorized law
19 enforcement officer or designated Department employee any document in his/her
20 possession relating to the ownership or possession of cargo or freight when on,
21 entering, or exiting the AOA, or any restricted Airport area. Request The attempt by any
22 person to enter or exit the AOA, or other restricted Airport area, a Restricted Area shall
23 constitute the consent of such person to the aforesaid search and/or inspection as
24 described herein.

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1 (e) *Weapons.*

2 (1) Unless duly authorized by state or federal law, no person, other than
3 federal, state, or local law enforcement officers on duty, shall carry or
4 transport any weapon ~~en~~ at the Airport in a manner contrary to governing
5 law, provided that this prohibition shall not be applicable to the extent
6 preempted by Chapter 790, Florida Statutes ~~(firearms, ammunition, or~~
7 ~~components thereof).~~

8 (2) No person shall discharge any gun ~~en~~ at the Airport, except as authorized
9 by state or federal law, such as in the performance of official duties
10 requiring the discharge thereof or in the lawful defense of life or property,
11 provided that this prohibition shall not be applicable to the extent
12 preempted by Chapter 790, Florida Statutes ~~(firearms, ammunition, or~~
13 ~~components thereof).~~

14 (3) No person shall furnish, give, sell, or trade any weapon or simulated
15 weapon ~~en~~ at the Airport unless authorized under appropriate lease with
16 or permit issued by the County, provided that this prohibition shall not be
17 applicable to the extent preempted by Chapter 790, Florida Statutes
18 ~~(firearms, ammunition, or components thereof).~~

19 (4) No person shall introduce a prohibited item, as defined by the TSA
20 Prohibited Items List, as amended, into a Restricted Area.

21 ...

22 (g) ~~*Unattended articles within the terminal buildings or adjacent areas.*~~ No
23 person shall leave any article of private property within the terminal buildings, on the
24 sidewalks, or any adjacent areas, unless such article is kept or otherwise confined so as

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 ~~to be under the control of another person with the intent of observing such article of~~
2 ~~private property in order to prevent such article from being used for an illegal purpose.~~

3 ~~(h)~~ *Enforcement.* Law enforcement officers assigned to the Airport ~~by the~~
4 ~~Broward Sheriff's Office~~ and such other Aviation Department employees designated by
5 the Aviation Department shall be responsible for enforcement of this Section 2-39, and
6 shall have the authority to issue the following for violations of this Section 2-39: (a)
7 citations under Chapter 8½ of the Code; and (b) violation notices pursuant to the written
8 policy established by the Aviation Director and incorporated into the Airport Security
9 Program. Notwithstanding the foregoing, sole enforcement of subsections 2-39(f) and
10 2-39(g) shall be by ~~the Broward Sheriff's Office~~ authorized law enforcement or the
11 Transportation Security Administration.

12 (h) *Suspensions.* Any person to whom an approved Airport Issued
13 Identification Media has been issued by the Aviation Department and to whom a notice
14 of violation is issued for a violation of Section 2-39 shall be required to surrender his or
15 her Airport Issued Identification Media pursuant to the written policy established by the
16 Aviation Director and incorporated into the Airport Security Program. A person who has
17 been issued a notice of violation shall have the right to a hearing in accordance with
18 procedures established by the Aviation Director and incorporated into the Airport
19 Security Program.

20
21 Section 4. Section 2-41 of the Broward County Code of Ordinances is hereby
22 amended to read as follows:

23 **Sec. 2-41. Fire and safety regulations.**

24 ...

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1 (d) Inspections by the Broward County Aviation Division and Broward Sheriff's
2 Office Fire Rescue Division. Any and all areas of the Airport shall be subject to periodic
3 fire safety inspections by the Broward County Aviation Division and Broward Sheriff's
4 Office Fire Rescue Division. Recommendations and infractions shall be reported to the
5 tenant or persons involved for immediate remedial action.

6 (e) Interference with means of egress/evacuation (as defined in
7 Section 633.202, 214, Florida Statutes, NFPA 101, and NFPA 3000). No person shall
8 interfere with (e.g., remove, cover, or obscure) any emergency exit signs. Additionally,
9 no person shall block, lock, or prop open any emergency evacuation or smoke barrier
10 gates, doors, ladders, or other facilities or equipment (e.g., fire or emergency alarms,
11 intercoms, or telephones) used in the evacuation of an aircraft, vehicle, or structure.

12
13 Section 5. Section 2-43 of the Broward County Code of Ordinances is hereby
14 amended to read as follows:

15 **Sec. 2-43. Airport Issued Identification Media and Emergency Response**
16 **Training.**

17 (a) Airport Issued Identification Media. All individuals who require unescorted
18 access to the SIDA, the AOA, or any portion of FLL in which certain security measures
19 specified in 49 CFR Part 1542 are carried out, must obtain Airport Issued Identification
20 Media in accordance with the procedures, rules, and requirements of the Airport
21 Security Program.

22 (b) Public Area Business Purpose Media. Commencing upon the date
23 specified by the Aviation Director and no later than December 31, 2018, all employees,
24 agents, representatives, contractors, and subcontractors of any person or entity holding

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 an agreement with the County for operations at FLL, including, but not limited to, a Field
2 Usage Agreement, an Airline Service Provider Agreement, and any other lease,
3 sublease, license, operating, construction, or concession agreement (collectively,
4 "Airport Agreement"), must obtain ~~Airport Issued Identification Media~~ Public Area
5 Business Purpose Media in accordance with the procedures, rules, and requirements of
6 the Aviation Department, unless the Aviation Director, in his or her sole discretion,
7 determines ~~Airport Issued Identification Media~~ Public Area Business Purpose Media is
8 not required or unless the person is otherwise required to obtain Airport Issued
9 Identification Media in accordance with Section 2-43(a). It shall be the responsibility of
10 the person or entity signing the Airport Agreement to ensure compliance with this
11 Section 2-43(b).

12 (c) Emergency Response Training. Effective upon the date specified by the
13 Aviation Director, all individuals required to obtain Airport Issued Identification Media or
14 Public Area Business Purpose Media (collectively, "Airport Personnel") must complete
15 the emergency response training required by the Aviation Department before the
16 issuance of such Airport Issued Identification Media or Public Area Business Purpose
17 Media and before each renewal thereof unless such training was completed within the
18 twelve (12) months immediately preceding the date of renewal. Airport Personnel who
19 obtained Airport Issued Identification Media before the effective date specified by the
20 Aviation Director pursuant to this Section 2-43(c) shall complete such training after such
21 effective date but before December 31, 2018, or before the renewal of any Airport
22 Issued Identification Media, whichever occurs first, and before each subsequent
23 renewal unless such training was completed within the twelve (12) months immediately
24 preceding the date of renewal.

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 (d) Training Compensation. All employers of Airport Personnel shall
2 compensate their respective Airport Personnel at the pay rate applicable to such Airport
3 Personnel for the time spent completing the emergency response training required by
4 this Section 2-43, and such employers shall follow all procedures, rules, and
5 requirements of the Aviation Department regarding Airport Issued Identification Media
6 and Public Area Business Purpose Media.

7
8 Section 6. Section 2-50 of the Broward County Code of Ordinances is hereby
9 amended to read as follows:

10 **Sec. 2-50. Compliance with operational guidelines.**

11 The Aviation Department shall establish operational guidelines governing the
12 privilege of engaging in ~~or conducting~~ Ground Transportation Services at the Airport.
13 ~~Such operational guidelines may add to or supplement the requirements of this division~~
14 ~~and may be amended from time to time as deemed necessary.~~ All persons must
15 comply with such operational guidelines, as may be amended from time to time. Any
16 failure to comply with such operational guidelines may result in a violation pursuant to
17 Chapter 8½ of the Code.

18
19 Section 7. Section 2-142 of the Broward County Code of Ordinances is hereby
20 amended to read as follows:

21 **Sec. 2-142. Fire and safety regulations.**

22 ...

23 (g) *Blocking access to fire hydrants and other fire protection devices and*
24 *equipment prohibited.* Vehicles shall not be parked within fifteen (15) feet of, or in any

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

manner that blocks or interferes with access to, a fire hydrant, fire department connection, or any other fire protection device or equipment.

(h) Interference with means of egress/evacuation (as defined in Section 633.202, 214, Florida Statutes, NFPA 101, and NFPA 3000). No person shall interfere with (e.g., remove, cover, or obscure) any emergency exit signs. Additionally, no person shall block, lock, or prop open any emergency evacuation or smoke barrier gates, doors, ladders, or other facilities or equipment (e.g., fire or emergency alarms, intercoms, or telephones) used in the evacuation of an aircraft, vehicle, or structure.

Section 8. Section 8½-16(k) of the Broward County Code of Ordinances is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new Section 8½-16(k) is hereby created to read as follows:

[Underlining omitted]

(k) *Violations of Chapter 2 of the Broward County Code of Ordinances:*

		<i>Fine</i>			
		<i>First Violation</i>	<i>*Second Violation</i>	<i>*Third Violation</i>	<i>*Four or More Violations</i>
(1)	Violating any provision of Chapter 2 of the Code unless otherwise more specifically set forth below.	\$250.00	\$500.00	\$750.00	\$1,000.00
(2)	Movement of aircraft by other than appropriately rated pilot or	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	mechanic certificated by the FAA				
2	(sec. 2-21(c)(3))				
3	(3) Failure to park unhangared	100.00	250.00	500.00	1,000.00
4	aircraft in designated space				
5	(sec. 2-21(f))				
6	(4) Failure to adequately secure	100.00	250.00	500.00	1,000.00
7	unhangared aircraft (sec. 2-21(f))				
8					
9	(5) Parking of unhangared aircraft on	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
10	a pervious surface (sec. 2-21(f))				
11	(6) Unauthorized jet propeller blast	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
12	endangering persons, buildings,				
13	equipment, or other aircraft				
14	(sec. 2-21(j)(2))				
15	(7) Unauthorized vehicle driving on	500.00	500.00	750.00	1,000.00
16	landing areas, ramps, or aprons				
17	(sec. 2-22(a))				
18	(8) Failure of ground vehicles to yield	150.00	300.00	750.00	1,000.00
19	right-of-way to aircraft in motion				
20	(sec. 2-22(c))				
21	(9) Unauthorized vehicle parking in	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
22	or on a Movement or				
23	Nonmovement Area				
24	(sec. 2-22(d)(1))				

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	(10)	Failure to have Tower Clearance within the Movement Area (sec. 2-22(e))	500.00	500.00	750.00	1,000.00
2						
3						
4	(11)	Use of cell phones or other personal electronic devices while operating vehicle on the Movement or Nonmovement Area (sec. 2-22(f) or sec. 2-26(i))	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
5						
6						
7						
8						
9	(12)	Failure to store, dispense, or handle fuel in accordance with the Airport's Fueling Program and in compliance with all applicable laws, codes, rules, ordinances, regulations, etc. (sec. 2-23(a-k) and sec. 2-28)	100.00	250.00	500.00	1,000.00
10						
11						
12						
13						
14						
15	(13)	Failure of driver to have all of the following when driving on the AOA: (i) appropriate license, (ii) insurance, (iii) ramp driving decal, and (iv) security badge or visitor's badge (sec. 2-25(c))	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
16						
17						
18						
19						
20						
21	(14)	Failure to observe traffic control devices when operating a vehicle on the ramps or aprons of the AOA (sec. 2-25(g))	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
22						
23						
24						

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	(15)	Operating in excess of fifteen miles per hour (15 mph) while on the ramp (sec. 2-25(g))	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
2						
3						
4	(16)	Operating a vehicle on the AOA in excess of five miles per hour (5 mph) within fifty (50) feet of an aircraft or building (sec. 2-25(g))	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
5						
6						
7						
8	(17)	Operating a vehicle on the AOA in a careless and reckless manner (sec. 2-25(h))	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
9						
10						
11	(18)	Parking of motorized ground support equipment in a manner that prevents such equipment from being readily driven or towed away from the aircraft in case of an emergency (sec. 2-25(i))	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
12						
13						
14						
15						
16						
17	(19)	Leaving motor vehicle unattended on the AOA when the engine is running (sec. 2-25(l) and sec. 2-140(c))	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
18						
19						
20						
21	(20)	Parking of vehicles or equipment within fifteen (15) feet of, or in any manner that blocks or interferes with access to, a fire hydrant, fire department connection, fire lane,	100.00	200.00	500.00	1,000.00
22						
23						
24						

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1		or any other fire protection device				
2		or equipment (sec. 2-25(m) or				
3		sec. 2-142(g))				
4	(21)	Operating ground support	75.00	150.00	300.00	600.00
5		equipment towing a train of				
6		baggage or cargo carts in excess				
7		of five (5) carts or in excess of				
8		sixty (60) feet (sec. 2-26(a))				
9	(22)	Operating ground support	75.00	150.00	300.00	600.00
10		equipment on the AOA without				
11		fully operational brakes, or towing				
12		equipment without positive				
13		locking couplings (sec. 2-26(b)				
14		and sec. 2-26(c))				
15	(23)	Parking ground support	75.00	150.00	300.00	600.00
16		equipment on the AOA in other				
17		than designated storage areas				
18		when not in use (sec. 2-26(d))				
19	(24)	Parking or storing of any motor	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
20		vehicle or other equipment on the				
21		AOA other than in areas				
22		designated or authorized by the				
23		Aviation Department				
24		(sec. 2-26(e))				

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	(25)	Unless specifically authorized by	75.00	150.00	300.00	600.00
2		the Aviation Department, or				
3		except for minimum repairs				
4		required to remove a vehicle or				
5		equipment from the AOA,				
6		servicing, cleaning, maintaining,				
7		repairing, or overhauling vehicles				
8		or other equipment on the AOA				
9		(sec. 2-26(f)(1))				
10	(26)	Fueling motor vehicles or other	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
11		motorized equipment on the AOA				
12		other than in areas established				
13		for such purpose by the Aviation				
14		Department (sec. 2-26(f)(2))				
15	(27)	Failure to maintain motor vehicle	75.00	150.00	300.00	600.00
16		or rolling stock equipment in good				
17		operating condition and in good				
18		repair when operating on the				
19		AOA (sec. 2-26(g))				
20	(28)	Failure to properly care for	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
21		Aircraft ramp, apron, or parking				
22		areas by causing the overflow or				
23		spilling of oil, grease, fuel, or any				
24		similar material (sec. 2-26(h))				

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	(29)	Failure to report any accidents	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
2		resulting in injury or damage to				
3		property or equipment on the				
4		AOA Movement Area or				
5		Nonmovement Area to BSO, the				
6		Airport District, and the Aviation				
7		Department (sec. 2-27)				
8	(30)	Failure to report to the Aviation	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
9		Department an aircraft accident				
10		or incident resulting in injury to				
11		any person or damage to any				
12		property (sec. 2-29(a))				
13	(31)	Failure to follow directions of	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
14		airline agent involved in aircraft				
15		push-back or power-back				
16		operation, or taxiing an aircraft				
17		between an aircraft involved in				
18		push-back operations and				
19		terminal gate area				
		(sec. 2-29(d)(5))				
20	(32)	Failure of aircraft being taxied,	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
21		towed, or otherwise moved on the				
22		AOA to utilize navigational lights				
23		during the hours between sunset				
24		and sunrise (sec. 2-29(d)(7))				

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	(33)	Performing repairs or servicing aircraft in areas not specifically approved for such purpose by the Aviation Department (sec. 2-30(a))	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
2						
3						
4						
5						
6	(34)	Cleaning, washing, or polishing aircraft in violation of applicable governmental rules or regulations; or performing such cleaning, washing, or polishing on other than an impervious surface (sec. 2-30(a))	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
7						
8						
9						
10						
11						
12						
13	(35)	Starting or operating of aircraft engines for maintenance purposes inside any hangar (sec. 2-30(b))	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
14						
15						
16						
17	(36)	Failing to follow standard, approved procedures in the event of an overflow or spill of oil, grease, fuel, or other similar material (sec. 2-26(h) and sec. 2-30(d))	100.00	250.00	500.00	1,000.00
18						
19						
20						
21						
22	(37)	Parking in the employee parking facilities or using the employee shuttle service without a current	50.00	100.00	150.00	200.00
23						
24						

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1		and valid decal and a current,				
2		valid identification card issued by				
3		the individual's employer, or a				
4		temporary pass issued by the				
5		Aviation Department				
6		(sec. 2-31(a))				
7	(38)	Failure of tenant, permittee, or	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
8		ground handling company to				
9		provide and maintain the required				
10		number of fire extinguishers				
11		(sec. 2-32(f))				
12	(39)	Failing to maintain tenant and	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
13		common areas in a clean and				
14		orderly fashion (sec. 2-32(i),				
15		sec. 2-38(h), sec. 2-141(f), or				
16		sec. 2-142(a))				
17	(40)	Smoking in a nondesignated	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
18		smoking area (sec. 2-36)				
19	(41)	Failure to provide proper	50.00	250.00	500.00	1,000.00
20		construction notification and				
21		obtain written authorization for				
22		repair or construction work within				
23		the airport terminals				
24		(sec. 2-38(i)(1))				

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	(42)	Failing to follow the push/pull	50.00	100.00	200.00	400.00
2		procedures for ingress to or				
3		egress from any access control				
4		portal, or failing to ensure that an				
5		access portal is closed and fully				
6		secured prior to departing that				
7		access portal (sec. 2-39(a)(7))				
8	(43)	Failing to properly access a	50.00	100.00	200.00	400.00
9		vehicular gate, as described in				
10		the Airport Security Program,				
11		while entering or exiting a				
12		Restricted Area (sec. 2-39(a)(8))				
13	(44)	The failure of any sponsor of	175.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
14		persons with Airport Issued				
15		Identification Media or Public				
16		Area Business Purpose Media to				
17		immediately notify the Aviation				
18		Department by telephone of any				
19		change in the status of any				
20		persons with Airport Issued				
21		Identification Media or Public				
22		Area Business Purpose Media				
23		that they sponsor, or the failure to				
24		send a written follow up within				
		eight (8) hours of any such				
		change in status (sec. 2-39(b)(1))				

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	(45)	The failure of any sponsor of	175.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
2		persons with Airport Issued				
3		Identification Media or Public				
4		Area Business Purpose Media to				
5		return the Airport Issued				
6		Identification Media or Public				
7		Area Business Purpose Media to				
8		the Aviation Department within				
9		twenty-four (24) hours after any				
10		change in status or within twenty-				
11		four (24) hours after the Airport				
12		Issued Identification Media or				
13		Public Area Business Purpose				
14		Media become inactive as a				
15		result of an audit (sec. 2-39(b)(2))				
16	(46)	Carrying or transporting any	500.00	500.00	750.00	1,000.00
17		weapon at the Airport in a manner				
18		contrary to governing law				
19		(sec. 2-39(e)(1))				
20	(47)	Discharging a gun at the Airport	500.00	500.00	750.00	1,000.00
21		(sec. 2-39(e)(2))				
22	(48)	Furnishing, giving, selling, or	500.00	500.00	750.00	1,000.00
23		trading a weapon or simulated				
24		weapon at the Airport				
		(sec. 2-39(e)(3))				

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	(49)	Distributing literature or picketing at FLL without first registering with the Aviation Department (sec. 2-40(c) or sec. 2-81(a))		75.00	150.00	300.00	600.00
2							
3							
4							
5	(50)	Soliciting funds at FLL without first obtaining a permit from the Aviation Department (sec. 2-40(c) or sec. 2-90(a))		75.00	150.00	300.00	600.00
6							
7							
8							
9	(51)	Torch-cutting or welding in hangars or welding in an area not previously approved for such activity by the Aviation Department or the Broward Sheriff's Office Department of Fire Rescue and Emergency Services (sec. 2-41(b))		150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
10							
11							
12							
13							
14							
15							
16	(52)	Operating without a current valid permit (sec. 2-46)†	30 days or fewer#	250.00	500.00	500.00	500.00
17							
18			All other violations	1,000.00	5,000.00	5,000.00	5,000.00
19							
20	(53)	Operating without a current valid decal (sec. 2-46) †	30 days or fewer#	250.00	500.00	500.00	500.00
21							
22			All other violations	1,000.00	5,000.00	5,000.00	5,000.00
23							
24							

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	(54)	Soliciting business at the Airport (sec. 2-46(f)) †	1,000.00	5,000.00	5,000.00	5,000.00
2						
3						
4	(55)	Failure to have an Airport Identification Card (sec. 2-46(d))**	100.00	250.00	250.00	250.00
5						
6						
7	(56)	Failure to keep required insurance in full force and effect (sec. 2-51(a))**	250.00	500.00	500.00	500.00
8						
9						
10	(57)	Failure to park in an Airport designated holding area (sec. 2-58)**	100.00	250.00	250.00	250.00
11						
12	(58)	Failure of a rental car company to utilize the common busing system at the Consolidated Rental Car Facility to pick up or drop off customers at the Terminal Complex (sec. 2-121(b))	150.00	300.00	750.00	1,000.00
13						
14						
15						
16						
17						
18	(59)	Failure of rental car company employees, etc., to park in the employee parking facility (sec. 2-123(a))	50.00	100.00	150.00	200.00
19						
20						
21	(60)	Failure to comply with traffic control devices in the Rental Car Center (sec. 2-123(b))	50.00	100.00	150.00	200.00
22						
23						
24						

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	(61)	Failure to comply with fifteen mile per hour (15 mph) speed limit in the Rental Car Center (sec. 2-123(b))	50.00	100.00	150.00	200.00
2						
3						
4						
5	(62)	Operating a vehicle in a careless and reckless manner in the Rental Car Center (sec. 2-123(c))	50.00	100.00	150.00	200.00
6						
7						
8	(63)	Failure to have a valid driver's license when operating a vehicle in the Rental Car Center (sec. 2-123(d))	50.00	100.00	150.00	200.00
9						
10						
11	(64)	Engaging in fueling operations without proper training; or without a background check; or in a manner not consistent with the rules and regulations established by the Fire Marshal's Office (sec. 2-123(e))	100.00	250.00	500.00	1,000.00
12						
13						
14						
15						
16						
17						
18	(65)	Rental car company failing to maintain its leased areas or common areas in the Rental Car Center (sec. 2-123(f))	100.00	250.00	500.00	1,000.00
19						
20						
21	(66)	Maintaining or operating an airplane in excess of 12,500 pounds at HWO (sec. 2-137(a))	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
22						
23						
24						

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	(67)	Conducting engine run-ups	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
2		outside designated run-up areas				
3		at HWO (sec. 2-137(c))				
4	(68)	Conducting engine run-ups at	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
5		HWO between the hours of				
6		10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.				
7		(sec. 2-137(c))				
8	(69)	Conducting engine run-ups so	150.00	300.00	450.00	600.00
9		engine blast is directed at				
10		spectators, other aircraft,				
11		personnel, hangars, shops, or				
12		other vehicles (sec. 2-137(c))				
13	(70)	Operating, keeping, or storing	100.00	250.00	500.00	1,000.00
14		aircraft not in conformity with				
15		published FAA airworthiness				
16		standards without prior approval				
17		of the Aviation Director or				
18		designee (sec. 2-137(d))				
19	(71)	Posting billboards or signs,	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
20		distributing circulars or other				
21		advertising media at HWO				
22		without the prior written consent				
23		of the Aviation Director or				
24		designee (sec. 2-137(k) or				
		sec. 2-141(d))				

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1	(72)	Parking vehicles outside	75.00	100.00	200.00	400.00
2		designated areas without the prior				
3		approval of the Aviation Director				
4		or designee (sec. 2-137(l))				
5	(73)	Parking, storing, or repairing	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
6		aircraft outside areas designated				
7		for such use by the County or				
8		Aviation Director or designee				
9		(sec. 2-139(a))				
10	(74)	Operating a motor vehicle on the	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
11		Movement Area or Nonmovement				
12		Area without proper licensing and				
13		registration, or authorization by				
14		the Aviation Director or designee				
15		(sec. 2-140(a)(1-3))				
16	(75)	Operating a fuel transport or fuel	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
17		service vehicle, tug, or any and all				
18		other motor vehicles on the				
19		Movement Area without being				
20		escorted by the Aviation				
21		Department (sec. 2-140(b))				
22	(76)	Parking or storing aircraft,	100.00	200.00	400.00	800.00
23		vehicles, or property without				
24		specific authorization of the				
		Aviation Director or designee				
		(sec. 2-141(e))				

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underlined type are additions.

1	(77)	Allowing the accumulation of materials that give the premises an unsightly appearance (sec. 2-141(f))	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
2						
3						
4						
5	(78)	Improper parking of aircraft so as to obstruct view by the Control Tower of any Movement Area (sec. 2-141(h))	150.00	300.00	600.00	1,000.00
6						
7						
8						
9	(79)	Failing to control and keep secure ingress to or egress from the AOA (sec. 2-137.1(a))	100.00	250.00	500.00	1,000.00
10						
11	(80)	Failing to display a proper General Aviation Identification Badge ("GA Badge") when entering, or exiting, or while on the AOA (sec. 2-137.1(b))	50.00	100.00	200.00	400.00
12						
13						
14						
15						
16	(81)	Unauthorized driving on the Movement Area, runways, or taxiways (sec. 2-140(d))	500.00	500.00	750.00	1,000.00
17						
18						
19	(82)	Vehicles, with or without a driver, shall not be parked, standing, or stopped in violation of the provisions of Article VI (sec. 2-214)	75.00	150.00	300.00	600.00
20						
21						
22						

23 *The number of violations shall be determined pursuant to the definition of
 24 "repeat violation" in Section 8½-9(c).

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.

1 #Violations resulting from a lapse of a permit or decal within the previous thirty
2 (30) days.

3 †In determining the amount of the fine, the hearing officer shall consider the
4 following factors: (1) the gravity of the violation; (2) any actions taken by the violator to
5 correct the violation; and (3) any previous violations committed by the violator. Repeat
6 violation may result in a denial of applicant's request for issuance of a permit.

7 **Repeat violation may be grounds for revocation of permittee's permit.
8

9 Section 9. Sections 8½-16(n), (o), (p), (q), and (s) of the Broward County
10 Code of Ordinances are hereby repealed in their entirety, and the remaining sections
11 shall be relettered accordingly.
12

13 Section 10. Severability.

14 If any portion of this Ordinance is determined by any court to be invalid, the
15 invalid portion will be stricken, and such striking will not affect the validity of the
16 remainder of this Ordinance. If any court determines that this Ordinance, in whole or in
17 part, cannot be legally applied to any individual, group, entity, property, or circumstance,
18 such determination will not affect the applicability of this Ordinance to any other
19 individual, group, entity, property, or circumstance.
20

21 Section 11. Inclusion in the Broward County Code of Ordinances.

22 It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of
23 this Ordinance become part of the Broward County Code of Ordinances as of the
24 effective date. The sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in
underscored type are additions.

1 word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other appropriate word
2 or phrase to the extent necessary in order to accomplish such intention.

3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Section 12. Effective Date.

This Ordinance is effective as of the date provided by law.

ENACTED

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE

EFFECTIVE

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:
Andrew J. Meyers, County Attorney

By /s/ Carlos A. Rodriguez-Cabarrocas 04/24/19
Carlos A. Rodriguez-Cabarrocas (date)
Assistant County Attorney

PROPOSED

By /s/ Sharon V. Thomas 04/24/19
Sharon V. Thorsen (date)
Senior Assistant County Attorney

CRC/ch
Airport Security Code Ordinance w/Fines
04/24/19
41002.0002

Coding: Words in ~~struck-through~~ type are deletions from existing text. Words in underscored type are additions.